
 
 
 
 
 

Electoral  
Provisions  

Sub Committee 
 

 
Councillor Chris Shippam (Chairman) 

Councillor Drew Swinerd (Vice-Chairman) 

Councillor Mrs Anita Barham  

Councillor Romana Gosine  

Councillor Sacha Gosine  

Councillor Denzil J Reynolds  

Councillor Richard J Wells  
 

 
 

A meeting of the above Committee will be held on 

 
Thursday 3 February 2022 at 7.00pm at the Civic Centre, Dartford 

 

 
Chief Officer and Director of Corporate Services 

26 January 2022 
 



 
A G E N D A  

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

 To receive declarations of interest from Members including the 

terms(s) of Grants of Dispensation (if any). 

 

 

3. Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To confirm the minutes of the Sub – Committee held on 8 July 2021. 

 

 

4. Urgent Items   

 The Chairman will announce if there are any urgent items and their 

position on the Agenda. 

 

 

5. References from other Committees. (If Any)   

6. Covid 19 Update.   

 A verbal report on the provisions in place for elections during the 

pandemic and any future changes expected. 

 

 

7. Elections Bill   

 A verbal report on the Elections Bill and expected changes for 2023. 

 

 

8. Interim Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2022 

(Pages 5 - 28) 

 

 To review the current Polling Districts and Polling Places and 

consider any changes that may be required before conducting an 

interim review. 

 

 

 
 



1 

DARTFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

MINUTES of the meeting of the Electoral Provisions Sub-Committee held on 
Thursday 5 November 2020. 

 
PRESENT: 
 

Councillor Chris Shippam (Chairman) 
Councillor Romana Gosine 
Councillor Sacha Gosine 
Councillor Peter Harman 
Councillor Denzil J Reynolds 
Councillor Richard J Wells 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
The Chairman, Councillor Shippam, welcomed Members and Officers to the 
meeting and reported that there had been no apologies for absence received. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 

3. CONFIRMATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 17 
OCTOBER 2018  
 
The Minutes of the Electoral Provisions sub – Committee held on 17 October 
2018 were confirmed as a correct record of that meeting. 
 

4. REFERENCES FROM OTHER COMMITTEES  
 
It was confirmed that there were no references from other Committees for the 
sub – committee to consider. 
 

5. URGENT ITEMS  
 
It was noted that there were no urgent items for the sub - Committee to 
consider. 
 

6. ANNUAL CANVASS  
 
The Electoral Services Manager reported verbally on current reforms to the 
Canvass process. 
 
She informed Members that Reform was introduced for the canvass taking 
place in this year to allow Electoral Registration Officers to have greater 
discretion in organising a process which better suited their local area; 
 
It was noted that in previous years, the Electoral Registration Officer sent a 
Household Enquiry Form (HEF) to every household in the borough.  Someone 
in the household was required to respond by completing the paper form, 

Page 1 Agenda Item 3



ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
 

2 

online, telephone or by text.  Any households which did not respond would 
receive a personal visit from a canvasser. 
 
It was explained that in the reformed process, Officers started the process by 
completing a data-matching exercise against information held by the 
Department of Work and Pensions and locally held data.  This allowed 
properties where the residents are more likely to have changed to be 
identified and to determine how such properties should be canvassed. 
 
Data matching was undertaken in July and the results were positive which 
allowed a significant number of properties being assigned to route one.  This 
meant that Officers were confident the information held on the Register of 
Electors was correct and the households did not have to take any action 
unless they needed to advise us of changes.   
 
For those households where data matching could not be confirmed, a 
combination of different forms and electronic communications has been used 
to encourage a response which is required for these properties. 
 
For properties still not responding, a visit by a Canvasser is still required, 
however the risks of this during the pandemic has been considered and a 
decision made not to send canvassers at this time.   
 
Officers are currently waiting to assess whether the reforms have enabled the 
creation of an accurate Register and what impact the pandemic has made on 
the process. 
 
Members noted the information provided. 
 

7. POLLING ARRANGEMENTS - 2021  
 
The Strategic Director (Internal Services) updated Members on the position of 
elections following legislation to delay the May 2020 elections and subsequent 
local authority by-elections and local referendums in England and the PCC 
elections, to May 2021. 
 
Members were informed that as a result of the challenges posed by the 
Covid-19 pandemic, a preliminary review of the current polling arrangements 
for the polls scheduled for 2021 had been undertaken to ensure that staff can 
work safely during the pandemic and that electors are able to comply with 
social distancing guidelines. 

It was noted that Officers had reviewed the suitability of all the polling places 
previously used considering such matters as:  

 whether the venues are spacious enough to enable social distancing,  

 if there are multiple entrances and exits to allow a one way system,  

 areas for electors to queue outside, and; 

 other relevant considerations, in line with current public health advice 
and government guidelines. 

Page 2Agenda Item 3



ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 5 NOVEMBER 2020 
 
 

3 

Arising from this review the sub – Committee received a schedule of polling 
places currently used showing their availability and suitability for use in 
forthcoming elections, together with details of substitute venues should those 
identified prove unavailable.   
 
The sub - Committee also received an assessment of the polling places from 
the (Acting) Returning Officer. 
 
Members raised concerns about the possible difficulties that could arise 
should postal vote applications greatly exceed current levels, but were 
reassured that the only problematic area could be the issuing of ballots should 
there be a huge influx of applications close to the closing date. 
 
The Sub Committee noted;  
 

1. The recommendations from the interim polling review set out in the 
report: and, 
 

2. That as and when guidance is received from Central Government, to 
note that further changes to these arrangements may be necessary. 

   

 
 

 
The meeting closed at 5.25 pm 

 
  

 
 
 
 

Councillor C Shippam 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 
 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 

INTERIM REVIEW OF POLLING DISTRICTS AND POLLING 
PLACES 2022 

 

 
1. Summary 

 

1.1   To review the current Polling Districts and Polling Places and consider any 
 changes that may be required before conducting an interim review. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1  That a public consultation on the interim polling district and polling places, be 

conducted in accordance with the timetable set out at Appendix A. 
 

2.2  That the Sub-committee notes the potential need to create a new polling district 
(SHO1b), to enable the [Stone] Neighbourhood Planning Referendum to be 
conducted (Appendix B). 

2.3  That the Sub-committee notes and supports the preliminary findings from 
Officers for the changes suggested in Appendix C, for inclusion in the public 
consultation. 

 
3. Background and Discussion 
 

3.1. The Representation of the People Act 1983 places a duty on the Council 
to divide the Borough into polling districts for the purposes of 
parliamentary elections and to designate a polling place for each polling 
district and to keep these arrangements under review.  These polling 
districts are also used for all other elections undertaken in the Borough. 

3.2. Although a full review of the Parliamentary polling districts and polling 
places is not required to start until 1 October 2023, due to the Borough’s 
growth, the Council’s practice is to undertake light touch reviews when 
required to identify any changes that may be needed. 

3.3. The length of the review process is not prescribed, however the 
consultation period should be sufficient to enable interested persons to 
comment.  The proposed timetable is therefore set out at Appendix A. 

3.4. A Neighbourhood Plan for Stone has been submitted to the Council and 
is currently with the Examiner for consideration.  Following conclusion of 
the Examiner’s findings, a Neighbourhood Planning Referendum (NPR) 
may need to be held.  The area covered by the Neighbourhood Plan is 
based on the old Stone Parish Council boundaries and  if a NPR is 
required, the current polling districts could not be used. 

3.5. To resolve this issue, Members are asked to consider the proposal set 
out at Appendix B to create a small unconnected polling district (SHO1b) 
covering the properties which are no longer parished, but would be 
eligible to vote in the NPR. 

Page 5 Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
3.6. This would be included in the public consultation to allow people to 

comment, but the General Assembly of Council would be asked to grant 
delegated authority to the Chief Officer & Director of Corporate Services 
to approve its introduction and republication of the Register of Electors 
if needed, so that the NPR could be held if required before the conclusion 
of the review. 

3.7. If the NPR is concluded by the publication of the revised Register of 
Electors in December 2022, then this polling district would be deleted 
and the properties would return to SHO1 to avoid any confusion in the 
future. 

3.8. Officers have conducted a preliminary review of the current polling 
districts and polling places to help establish their suitability, and have 
identified potential alternatives where required.  The current 
arrangements and suggestions for consideration can be found at 
Appendix C. 

3.9. Nine mobile units are used during the election period as polling stations 
where previously permanent buildings could not be found or hired.   The 
hiring of these units has now become problematic due to a shortage of 
available units, HGV driver issues and the challenges of their use during 
the pandemic when social distancing was difficult for staff and electors. 

3.10. The Returning Officer is making enquiries to find more suitable polling 
places rather than relying on the hiring of mobile units.  Failure to secure 
mobile units, especially when short notice elections are called, risks the 
Returning Officer not being able to run a successful and efficient 
election. 

 
4. Relationship to the Corporate Plan 
 

Not applicable 
 

5. Financial, legal, staffing and other implications and risk assessments* 
 

Financial Implications The creation of additional polling places will 
occur more costs to local elections. 

Legal Implications None. 

Staffing Implications The creation of additional polling districts will 
require the Returning Officer to employ more 
staff at election time. 

Administrative 
Implications 

None. 

Risk Assessment  No uncertainties and/or constraints. 

 
  

Page 6Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
6. Details of Exempt Information Category 
 

 Not applicable 
 

7. Appendices 
 

Appendix A – Review Timetable 
Appendix B – Proposal for New Polling District for the Neighbourhood 
Planning Referendum 
Appendix C – Current polling districts and polling places and suggested 
alternatives. 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 

Documents consulted Date / 
File Ref 

Report Author Section and 
Directorate 

Exempt 
Information 
Category 

 
  Jeanette Pegler 

(01322) 343424 
Electoral 
Services / 
Corporate 

N/A 

 
  

Page 7 Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page is Blank 
  

Page 8Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
APPENDIX A 

REVIEW TIMETABLE 

 
Stage 1 – Notice of the Review  
 
28 February 2022 – General Assembly of the Council to be consulted on the proposals considered by 
the Electoral Provisions Sub-committee. 
 
Stage 2 – Consultation 
 
7 March 2022 – Notice of Review published  
 

 Six-week consultation starts 
 
Consultees: - 

 

 Returning Officer 

 County Returning Officer 

 Gareth Johnson MP 

 Members for Dartford Borough Council 

 Members for Kent County Council 

 Parish Councils 

 DIAL NWK 

 All Directions 

 HiKent 

 Kent Association for the Blind (West team) 

 Choice Support (Peppercorns) 

 North Kent Mind 

 Alzheimer’s Dementia Support Services 
 
Stage 3 – Concluding the Review 
 
The Electoral Registration Officer will review the results of the consultation and report back to the 
Electoral Provisions Sub-committee if any changes are required. 
 
The General Assembly of the Council will be asked at its meeting on the 25 July 2022 to consider the 
recommendations from the Electoral Provisions Sub-committee. 

 
Stage 4 – Publishing the Conclusions of the Review 
 
Once approved, the details of the new polling districts and polling places will be published on the 
Council’s website. 
 
With the exception of the changes required to conduct the [Stone] Neighbourhood Planning 
Referendum, if required, the changes will come into effect at the republication of the Register of 
Electors in December 2022. 

  

Page 9 Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page is Blank 
  

Page 10Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
APPENDIX B 

 

PROPOSAL FOR NEW POLLING DISTRICT SHO1b 
FOR THE NEIGHBOURHOOD PLANNING REFERENDUM 

 
Due to the Stone Neighbourhood Plan being based on the pre 2018 Parish boundary, a new polling 
district needs to be created if a referendum is required. 
 
It is proposed that new a polling district (SHO1b) be created containing the areas shown shaded yellow 
in Figure 1. solely for the use in the Neighbourhood Planning Referendum.  This proposal makes no 
recommendation to change any County, Borough or Parish boundaries and their voting arrangements 
will remain the same for those elections. 
 
However, for the Neighbourhood Planning Referendum, it is proposed that they will vote in the same 
polling place as polling district SHO3 but that this temporary polling district is deleted at the 
republication of the revised Register of Elector following the conclusion of the referendum. 
 

 
 

  
Figure 1 

Page 11 Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
The properties which would be included in this new polling district are: -  
 

17 - 49  Lingfield Avenue Dartford Kent DA2 6AP 
3 – 8 Fairway Drive Dartford Kent DA2 6AR 
12 - 55 Brent Close Dartford Kent DA2 6DB 
57 - 91 (odds) Brent Close Dartford Kent DA2 6DH 

2A London Road Stone Kent DA2 6DJ 

1 – 15 (odds) London Road Stone Kent DA2 6DL 

1 – 4 Colin Close Dartford Kent DA2 6DP 

16 – 42 (evens) Elham Crescent Dartford Kent DA2 6FA 

1-15 Bramber Court Bow Arrow Lane Stone Kent DA2 6RA 

1 - 14 Kenilworth Court Bow Arrow Lane Stone Kent DA2 6RB 

1-15 Wardour Court Bow Arrow Lane Stone Kent DA2 6RD 

1 - 12 Berwick Court Grange Crescent Dartford Kent DA2 6RF 

1 - 24 Conisborough Court Osbourne Road Dartford Kent DA2 6RH 

1 – 12 Stokesay Court Grange Crescent Dartford Kent DA2 6RJ 

1 - 14 Pickering Court Osbourne Road Dartford Kent DA2 6RP 
 

  

Page 12Agenda Item 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
APPENDIX C 

POLLING DISTRICT AND POLLING PLACES 
CURRENT ARRANGEMENTS AND OBSERVATIONS 

 

PD Recommended Polling Place 
Comments / Recommendations 

BEA1 Arrow Riding Centre 

Due to the pandemic, the Returning Officer decided not to use the 
riding school in May 2021 due to the vulnerability of students.  
However this had previously worked well as a polling place and there 
is no proposal to change at future elections. 
 
The Council’s trailer was refurbished and used at this location in 2021. 
This will make a suitable alternative instead of a mobile unit at a 
different location where a permanent building cannot be found.  
 

BEA2 Bean Village Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

BRG1 Dartford Bridge Learning & Community Campus 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

BRG2 Dartford Bridge Learning & Community Campus 

At the May 2021 election, the polling place was relocated from the 
Bridge Management Suite to the Dartford Bridge Learning & 
Community Campus due to the premises being too small to meet 
social distancing requirements.   
 
These premises were already used as a polling place for BRG1, and 
is a community hub for this development, including the school, library 
and community centre facilities.   
 

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
It is therefore suggested that the polling place should be changed 
permanently to the Dartford Bridge Learning & Community Campus. 

BRT1 Dartford Primary Academy (Juniors) 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

BRT2 Princes Park 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

BRT3 Fleetdown Library Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

BUR1 Holy Trinity Church of England School Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

DAR1 Darenth Hall Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

DAR2 Darenth Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

EBB1a Castle Hill Community Centre 

The polling station was relocated from Castle Hill Primary School to 
the Castle Hill Community Centre in the May 2021 elections, and used 
in the 2019 elections.  The hall is located next to the School and offers 
better polling facilities.  As the development has grown, the previous 
room identified in the School to allow it to remain open is no longer 
suitable for the number of electors now registered in the area. 
 
To avoid elector confusion it is suggested that the polling place should 
be changed to Castle Hill Community Centre for future elections and 
the polling district reference be amended to EBB1a due to the reasons 
set out below. 

EBB2b Ebbsfleet Green Primary School 
The Ebbsfleet development has grown as expected.  When 
conducting the review of local boundaries it now would benefit from a 
new polling district in the Weldon area.  There is a new primary school 

P
age 14

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
Ebbsfleet Green Primary School that would offer a suitable polling 
place. 
 
It is recommended that a new polling district be created (Annex 1) 
called EBB1b - Weldon and the polling place be Ebbsfleet Green 
Primary School. 
 

EBB2 Mobile Unit (Snowden Hill) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives.  
  

GRE1 Knockhall Academy Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

GRE2 Sir John Franklin Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

GRE3 Ingress Community Centre Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

GRE4 n / a 

There are no registered electors in this polling district so a polling 
place is currently not required. 

HEA1 Wentworth County Primary School 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

HEA2 Lutonia Scout Hall 

In the May 2021 elections, Lutonia Scout Hall was used to meet the 
social distancing requirements.  This building provided good polling 
facilities and was more accessible than the Scout House, which 
previously required ramps to be built.  It is therefore recommended 
that the polling place should be changed to Lutonia Scout Hall. 

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 

HEA3 
Mobile Unit (Junction Heathclose Road/Heath 
Lane) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives.  
 

JOY1 Summerhouse Drive Library 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

JOY2 Joydens Wood Community Centre 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

LNS1 Jubilee Church Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

LNS2 Jubilee Church Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

LNS3 Community (Scout) Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

LNS4 Mobile Unit (The Oval) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 

LNS5 Mobile Unit (Nuthatch) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 

LNS6 Southfleet Village Hall Suitable location and no changes recommended. 

LNS7 Mobile Unit (Broomhills) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 

MLC1 Bexley Sports and Social Club 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 

MLC2 Leyton Cross Social Club Suitable location and no changes recommended 

NEW1 St Albans School Suitable location and no changes recommended 

NEW2 Methodist Church Hall Suitable location and no changes recommended 

NEW3 The Hesketh Pavilion Suitable location and no changes recommended 

PRI1 9th Dartford (Morning Star) Scout Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

PRI2 Mobile Unit (Car Park at Highfield Road South) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.   
 
In May 2021, the unit was moved from Larch Road to the car park on 
Highfield Road to allow safe queuing outside the station if required.   
 
During the review, Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 

PRI3 Phoenix Place Community Hub 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

PRI4 Tree Community Centre 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

PRI5 Oakfield Primary School 

In May 2021, the School was not available to be used as a polling 
station and it was moved to 8th Dartford Scout Hall on Oakfield Road.  
Although the Hall itself offered good facilities for the dual polling 
station, accessibility to the Hall was problematic and it is not 
recommended that this be used as an alternative facility. 

SCA1 Mobile Unit (Chalice Way) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 

SCA2 Stone Pavilion 

In the May 2021 election, the community hall was used instead of the 
conference room.  This offered a better polling facility and 
consideration should be given to changing this polling place.  

SCA3 Mobile Unit (Steele Avenue) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 
 
This is a large polling district and would benefit from being divided into 
two polling districts and Officers will explore options during the review. 
 

SHO1a The Gateway Primary Academy 

Suitable location and no changes recommended other than amending 
the PD reference. 

SHO1b The Gateway Primary Academy Recommendations per Appendix B to the report. 

SHO2 Brent Primary School Suitable location and no changes recommended 

SHO3a Dartford Judo Club 

Currently the electors in the North of the polling district SHO3 have to 
vote at Gateway School.  To access this polling place they have to 
travel past other polling stations by either foot or driving.  Therefore, it 
is suggested that the polling district is split as shown in Annex 2 and 
that they vote at the Dartford Judo Club. 

SHO3b The Gateway Primary Academy 
Suitable location and no changes recommended other than amending 
the PD reference. 

SHO4a Dartford Judo Club 
During the May 2021 elections, the Brent Primary school was not 
available so the Dartford Judo Club was used as an alternative. The 
Brent Primary school offers good polling facilities but is not that 

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
accessible for those electors in the North of the polling district and the 
Dartford Judo Club would offer a more convenient facility.  Therefore 
consideration should be given to splitting the polling district.(Annex 2) 
 

SHO4b Brent Primary School 

If the polling district were split as mentioned above, this would 
become SHO4b and retain the name St John’s.  The School offers a 
suitable location for polling for this polling district. 

SH05 Alamein Community Centre 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

SWA1 Heritage Community Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

SWA2 
Swanscombe & Greenhithe Town Council 
Offices 

Suitable location and no changes recommended 

SWA3 The Church Centre Suitable location and no changes recommended 

TEM1 Mobile Unit (Trevithick Drive) 

A mobile polling place is currently used at this location; however, it 
does not offer the best polling facilities for electors.  During the review, 
Officers will continue to investigate alternatives. 

TEM2 Temple Hill Baptist Church 

Temple Hill Primary School is currently the nominated polling place.  
However, at previous elections, it has been difficult for the School to 
remain open, or it have asked the Council to use alternative rooms 
which has caused elector confusion.  The Baptist Church was the 
previous polling place and it is suggested that this would be a more 
suitable location in the future.  

TEM3 Temple Hill Community Centre 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

TOW1 River Mill Primary School Suitable location and no changes recommended 

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 

TOW2a River Mill Primary School 

Now the developments at William Mundy Way and Mill Pond Road 
have been completed and occupied, it is recommended that a new 
polling district is created and that these electors vote in a dual polling 
station at River Mill Primary School, which would provide more 
convenient polling facilities than Highfield Road Baptist Church. 
(Annex 3) 
 

TOW2b Dartford Library 

The development of Lowfield Street and the regeneration of the Town 
Centre means that the polling arrangements for the remainder of this 
area also needs to be reviewed.  Annex 4 provides a suggestion to 
create a separate polling district for the Lowfield Street development 
and properties to the east to vote at a new polling station at Dartford 
library. 

TOW2c Highfield Road Baptist Church 
Suitable location and no changes recommended other than an 
amendment of the PD reference. 

TOW3 Central Park Running Track 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

WES1 West Hill Primary Academy 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

WES2 Holy Trinity 

In the May 2021 elections, the polling station was located back in the 
Masonic Hall.  Although this offers good polling facilities, accessing is 
difficult for pedestrians and the school remains a better location as 
agreed at the previous polling review. 

WES3 Christ Church Parish Rooms 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

WSH1 Sutton-at-Hone Library 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 

WSH2 The Papermakers Arms PH 

We were unable to book the Hawley Mission Hall for the May 2021 
elections and used Papermakers Arms PH as an alternative.  This 
offered a good polling place and no negative comments were 
received.  The access was better for electors and parking was easily 
available and it is recommended that this is the designated polling 
place. 
 

WSH3 Wilmington Memorial Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

WSH4 St Michael's Church Hall 
Suitable location and no changes recommended 

WSH5 Oakfield Primary School 
See comments for PRI5 

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 8



                              

ELECTORAL PROVISIONS SUB-COMMITTEE 
03 February 2022 

 
 

Page 22Agenda Item 8



EBB1A

BEA2

EBB2

LNS7

SWA1

SWA3

GRE1

SCA3

SCA2

EBB1B

SWA2

DAR2

BEA1

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 100025870Map  On: 22/12/2021 11:03 AM Version 0.1

© 
Da

rtfo
rd 

Bo
rou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 1
00

02
58

70
  2

01
3, 

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 By

  T
he

 Pr
op

ert
y I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Te
am

, 

Annex 1 - EBB1B
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey 
map with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majestys Stationery Office
© Crown Copyright 2013
Unauthorised reproduction 
Infringes Crown Copyright and 
May lead to prosecution or civil
Proceedings
Dartford Borough Council 100025870  2021

Legend

Polling Areas
New Polling District

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 24



SCA1

SCA2

TEM3 SHO3A

BRT1

TEM2

NEW2

BRT3

NEW1

BRT2

SHO1

SHO4B

NEW3

SHO1

SHO5

BEA1

SHO3B

SHO4A

TEM1

TOW1

BRG2

Contains OS data © Crown Copyright and database right 100025870Map  On: 22/12/2021 11:29 AM Version 0.1

© 
Da

rtfo
rd 

Bo
rou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 1
00

02
58

70
  2

01
3, 

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 By

  T
he

 Pr
op

ert
y I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Te
am

, 

Annex 2 - SH03A/B and SHO4A/B
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey 
map with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majestys Stationery Office
© Crown Copyright 2013
Unauthorised reproduction 
Infringes Crown Copyright and 
May lead to prosecution or civil
Proceedings
Dartford Borough Council 100025870  2021

Legend

Polling Areas
New Polling District

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 26



!.

WES3

BUR1

BRT1

TOW1

TOW2A
NEW1

WES2

TEM3
WES1

HEA3

TEM2

PRI2

PRI4

PRI1

TOW3

HEA2

NEW2

TOW2B

BRT2

TEM1

PRI3

NEW3
HEA1

River Mill School

Map  On: 22/12/2021 11:45 AM Version 0.1

© 
Da

rtfo
rd 

Bo
rou

gh
 C

ou
nc

il 1
00

02
58

70
  2

01
3, 

Ma
p P

rod
uc

ed
 By

  T
he

 Pr
op

ert
y I

nfo
rm

ati
on

 Te
am

, 

Annex 3 - TOW2A/2B
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey 
map with the permission of the Controller
of Her Majestys Stationery Office
© Crown Copyright 2013
Unauthorised reproduction 
Infringes Crown Copyright and 
May lead to prosecution or civil
Proceedings
Dartford Borough Council 100025870  2021

Legend

Polling Areas
New Polling District

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 8



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 28


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	8 Interim Review of Polling Districts and Polling Places 2022
	PollingDistricts_Annex1
	PollingDistricts_Annex2
	PollingDistricts_Annex3


